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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of SPR Engenious Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SPR Engenious Limited (‘the Company'),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
(‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its loss (including other comprehensive income), its
cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(1 0)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (‘ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

4. The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements

and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of SPR Engenious Limited on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 {cont’d)

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to repert in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors.
The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in
- equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of
the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liguidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
fncludes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the
Act we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control;

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audif procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(iy of the Act we are ailso
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls;
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Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of SPR Engenious Limited on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 {cont’d)

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

» Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internat control that we identify during our audit.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2023 were audited by the
predecessor auditor, B.R. Gupta & Co., who have expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial
statements vide their audit report dated 08 May 2023.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we report that the Company has not paid or provided for any managerial
remuneration during the year. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(18) of the Act is not applicable.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’} issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure A, a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit,
we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial
statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in paragraph
13(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
(as amended).

¢) The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133
of the Act;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the

Board of Directors, nane of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of SPR Engenious Limited on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (cont’d)

f) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in paragraph 13(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and
paragraph 13(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (as amended);

g) Withrespect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company as on 31 March 2024 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in Annexure B wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and'

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our optmon and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

I The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position
as at 31 March 2024.;

i. ~ The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2024 .;

ii. ~ There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024

a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in note 486(i) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies}, inciuding
foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in note 46(ii) to the financial statements, no funds have been received
by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the
Funding Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behaif of the Funding Party
(‘Uttimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any
material misstatement.

V. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2024.

@o\
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Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of SPR Engenious Limited on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (cont'd)

i, Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company, in respect of financial
year commencing on 1 April 2023, has used an accounting software (SAP ECC) for
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software except that, audit trail feature was not enabled at database level to log any direct
data changes, as described in note 57 to the financial statements. Further, during the course
of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with in
respect of the accounting software where such feature is enabled.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Jpaec Ao

Arun Tandon
Partner _
Membership No.: 517273

UDIN: 24517273BKEXFI8597

Place: New Delhi
Date: 13 May 2024
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members
of SPR Engenious Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report
that:

(i) (a} (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including guantitative
details and situation of property, ptant and equipment, capital work-in-progress, and relevant
details of right-of-use assets.

{B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

{(b) The property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress, and relevant details of right-of-use
assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of physical
verification programme adopted by the Company, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties held by the Company (other than properties where
the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessea),
disclosed in note 3 and 6 to the financial statements, are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has adopted cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment including right-of-
use assets and intangible assets. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i){(d) Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order 2020 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Order’) not applicable to the
Company.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended) and rules
made thereunder. .

(i) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during
the year, except for goods-in-transit. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the
aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed as compared to book records. In respect of
goods-in-transit, these have been confirmed from corresponding receipt and/or dispatch inventory
records.

{b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits by banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets at any point of time during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(it The Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in
the nature of loans to companies, firms, Ilimited liability partnerships or any other parties during
the year. The Company has not made investment in firms and limited liability partnerships during
the year. Further, the Company has made investments in companies during the year, in respect
of which:

(@) The Company has not provided any loans or provided any advances in the nature of loans,
or guarantee, or security to any other entity during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clauses 3(iii}(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not provided any guarantee or given any security or granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans during the year. However, the Company has made investment
in 2 entities amounting to Rs. 1,375.09 million (year-end balance Rs. 2,099.00 million) and in
our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, such.j
made are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members
of SPR Engenious Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (cont’d)

{c) The Company does not have any outstanding loans and advances in the nature of loans at
the beginning of the current year nor has granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans
during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(iii)(c), 3(iii)(d), 3(iii}(e} and 3(iii){f) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of investments made, as
applicable. Further, the Company has not entered into any transaction covered under section 185
and section 186 of the Act in respect of loans granted, guarantees and security provided by it.

(V) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be deposits
within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

{vi) The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of
section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/ services / business activities.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii)(a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
value added fax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate
authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the
year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues referred
to in subclause (a) above that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account
of any dispute.

(viiiy  According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43
of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books of accounts.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b} According to the information and expianations given to us including representation received from
the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the
Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

{c¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not raised any money by way of term loans during the year and did not have any term loans
outstanding at the beginning of the current year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short term
basis have, prima facie, not been utilised for fong term purposes.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial

statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account
of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members
of SPR Engenious Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 {cont’d)

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any loans during
the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries.

{x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments}, during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(b) During the year, the Company has made preferential allotment of shares. In our opinion and according
to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the requirements of
section 42 and section 62 of the Act and the rules framed thereunder with respect to the same. Further,
the amounts so raised were used for the purposes for which the funds were raised, though surplus funds
which were not required for immediate utilisation have been invested in readily realisable liquid
investments.

(xi) (a} To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by
the Gompany or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered by
our audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by
the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act has been
filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies {(Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

{c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by
the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company
during the year.

(i) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly,
' reporting under clause 3(xi)) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered into
by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act. The details of
such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc., as required under
indian Accounting Standard (ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act. Further, according to the
information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to constitute an audit committee
under section 177 of the Act.

(xiv) (@) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has an internal
audit system which is commensurate with the size and nature of its business as required under the
provisions of section 138 of the Act.

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the period
under audit.

(xv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section 192 of the Act
are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi} The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934.
Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a), (b} and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of the
Company, the Group (as defined in Core investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 20186) does
not have any CiC.

(xvii} The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year but had incurred ca
amounting to Rs. 7.55 million in the immediately preceding financial year. e
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members
of SPR Engenious Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 {cont'd)

(xviil) There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and based on the information and

{xix}

()

{xx1)

explanations given to us by the management and the response received by us pursuant fo our
communication with the outgoing auditors, there have been no issues, obiections or cONcerns raised by

the outgoeing auditors.

According to the information and explanations given fo us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
in the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and
management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that
our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that ali liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not meet the criteria as
specified under sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Ruies, 2014 and according, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause under
this report.

For Watker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accouniants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Jace Aseds

Arun Tandon
Partner
Membership No.: 517273

UDIN: 24517273BKEXFI8597

Place; New Delhi
Date: 13 May 2024
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Annexure B

Independent Auditor's Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of SPR Engenious Limited (‘the Company’) as at
and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Contrels with Reference to Financial
Statements

Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing issued by the ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicabie to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued by the
ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated

effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such
internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of SPR Engenious
Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (cont’d)

reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of coliusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements fo future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

GCpinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

- For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Ajw ot

Arun Tandon
Partner
Membership No.: 517273

UDIN: 24517273BKEXF|8597

Place: New Delhi
Date: 13 May 2024
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ASSETS
Non-current assets

a) Property, plant and equipment
b} Capital work-in-progress
¢} Intangible assets
d) Right of use assets
) Financial assets
1) Investments
(i) Other financial assets
f) Deferred tax assets (net)
g Other non-current asset

Current assets

a) Inventoties
b) Financial assets
@ Investments
(ii) Trade reccivables
(D) Cash and cash equivalents
{iv) Other bank balances other than (i) above

(%) Other financial assets
) Other current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
2} Equity share capital
b) Other equity

Liabilities
Non-current liabilitics
2) Financial liabilities

(0 Lease liabilities
b) Provisions ’

Current liabilities

a) Financial lisbilides
) Lease Habilities
{ii) Trade payables

SPR Engenious Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024

Note
No.

N

L=l

12

13
14
14

11

15
16

33
17

33
18

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprses and small enterprises
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and smafl enterprises

(@) Crther finatcial Liabilines
b) Other current liabilities
¢} Provisions

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

See accompanying notes to the financial seatements

Arun Tandon
Parincr
Membership na. 517273

Place : New Delhi
Date:l3 May 2024

19
20
17

he

ankyj Gupta
Company Secretary

gy

Prem Prakash Rathi
Chief Financial Officer

As ai
31 March 2024
Rs. million

357.53
161.02

0.11
275.81

2,099.00
4433
4.72
48,90
2,091.42

6.66

403.08
4.78
5.04

70.00
7477
78.61

647.94

3,639.36

3,500.00

(40.87)

3,459.13

19.18
5.28
24.46

0.00
0.41

38.49
112.41
3.05
1.41
155.77

3,639.36

As at
31 March 2023
Rs. million

16.93
0.99

280.60

780.03
120.00
4.72
(.51
1,203.79

10.03
65.00

0.69
2.09
71.81

1,281.59

1,200.00

(14.22)

1,185.78

19.18

19.18

1.92

747

6227

497

3 76.63

1,28159

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

hadeks

Krishnakum:
Whole Timc Director

DIN : 00051065
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. SPR Engenions Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024

Note For the year ended
No. 31 March 2024
Rs. million
1 Revenue from operations 21 zn
I Other income 22 31.66
I Total income (I+II) 34.37
IV Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 23 0.79
24 .01

(Increase) / decrease in inveatories of finished goods aad work-in-progress

Employee benefit expense 25 1407
Finance costs 26 3.57
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 27 678
Other expenses 28 15.1¢
Total expenses 40.36
¥V Loss before tax (ITI-1V) (3.99
Vi Tax expense:
1) Current tax -
i) Deferred mx N
VII  Loss for the year/period (V-VI) 5.99
VI Other comprchensive income
A (1) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
) Remeasurements of the post employment defined benefit plans 0.03
(i) Income rax relaving to items that will not be reclassified to profit or lnss -
B (§) Iterns thae will be reclassified o profit or loss
2) Fair value change of cash flow hedge -
(i) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or Joss -
‘Total other comprehensive income .03
Totzl comprehensive income (VII+VIH) 5.96
Earnings per share ( of Rs. 10/- each)
Basic (Rs) 0.03)
Diluted { Rs) 0.03)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. i-57

In terms of out report attached
For Walker Chandiok-, o

Chartered Accoun: /r\s("\ - .

: - . g \ 4 =1
Fijpm Registragion No,.001076N/N500013
3 7 et
ik
¥

Partner &
Membership no, 517273~

.,
3,

Prem Prakash Rithi
any Sccretary Chicf Financial Officer

—_
e
ety

[ iy

Place : New Delhi
Dare:13 May 2024

T

For the period ended

31 March 2023
Rs. million

5.15
036
0.17

12.34

12.87

{7.72)

_ asy

(L96)

5.82

5.82

.03
0.13)

For and on behalf of the Boaird of Directors

Krishnakimar Srinivasan Luy D, Shriram
Whole Time Disector irector
DIN : 00692717

DIN : 00051065



A. Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before tax

Adfustarents for -

Depreciation,/amortisation

Finance costs

Interest income

Fair value gain on investments

Gain of sale of investments

Operating loss before working capital changes

Adjustments for:

(Increase)/ decrease in inventorics

(Increase)/ decrease in trade receivables

{Increase)/ decrease in other financial assers
(Increase)/ decrease in other assets

Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables

Increase/ (dectease) in other financial liabilities
Increase/ (decrease) in other liabilities and provisions
Cash {used in}/ generated from operations
Income tax paid

Net cash (used in)/ generated from operating activities

B. Cash flow from investing activities

Tnterest received

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of other intangible assets
Investment in subsidiary

Envestments in mutuzl funds

Sate proceeds from mutual funds

Deposits redeemed

Dieposits made with bank

Net cash (used) in investing activities

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Payment of kease hablity*
Interest on lease Lablity
Interest paid
Issue of equity share capital
Expenses on issue of share capital
Net cash from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

*Rounded off to zero.

SPR Engenious Limited
Cash flow starement fot the year ended 31 March 2024

@)

(B)

©

(A+B+0)

(This space Das been intentionally &t blank)

For the year ended For the period ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. million Rs. million
(5.99) {7.72)
6.78 0.17
3.57 0.35
(11.72) -
@M -
(16.37) (5.15)
(26.50) (12.35)
{6.66) -
(4.78) -
(3.33) 0.00
{78.44) (2.09)
3143 747
5014 12.35
4.82 -
(33.32) 5.38
{0.65) {0.51)
33.97) 4.86
7.18 4.46
(550.37) (17.92)
011} (259.67)
{1,359.97) (725.03)
(3,034.31) .
2,64535 -
120,00 -
(74.53) (185.00)
(2,246.76) (1,183.16)
.00} ©.11}
(192 ©.10)
(1.65) (0.25)
2,300.00 1,200.00
(20.69) (11.22)
2,275.14 1,188.32
4.9%) 10.03
10.03 N
5.04 10.03




SPR Engenious Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2024

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand

- current accounts 5.04 10.03
5.04 10.03

Note:

1. The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (nd AS) 7.

In terms of our report attached

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
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Partner { w i DIN : 00692717 DIN : 00051065
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Place : New Delhi
Date:13 May 2024




SPR EngeniousLimited
Statement of Change in Equity as at 31 March 2024

) Fully paid up equity shares
( face value of Rs 10/- each)

Noi;)is[?];iir:z Rs. million
Balance as at 3% March 2022 _ -
Add:Shares issucd during the year 120.00 1,200.00
Balance as at 31 March 2023 120.00 1,200.00
Add:Shares issued during the year 230.00 2,300.00
Balance zs at 31 March 2024 350.00 3,500.00
{b) Other equity Rs. million

Reserve and surplus
Particulars Total
Retained eamings

Balance as at 31 March 2022 - -
Profit for the perod (5.82) (5.82)
Expenses on issue of share capital (Net of deferred tax) ' (8.40) (8.40)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 (14.22) {14.22)
Profit for the year (5.99) 5.99)
Expenses on issue of share capital (20.70) (20.70)
Other comprehensive income for the year net of tax 0.03 0.03
Balance as at 31 March 2024 4{?&&% - (40.87) {40.87)

In terms of our report attached
For Walier Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Fjrm Registrgtion No. 0010?6N/N50 ;

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

i Gupta Prem Prakash Rathi Krishnakumar Srinivasan Luv D{ Sheiram
Arun Tandon Company Secretacy Chief Tinancial Officer Whole Time Director Director
Partner DN < 00692717 DIN : 00051065

Membership no. 5172?%

Place : New Delhi
Date:13 May 2024



SPR Engenious Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

1. Corporate information

SPR Engenious Limited (“the Company”) having CIN No.- U292992D1.2022PLC405090 is a public
Company domiciled in India and Incorporated on September 26, 2022 under the provisions of the
Companies Act, applicable in India. The registered office of the Company is located at 3td Floor,
Himalaya House, 23, Kasturba Gandhi Marg, New Delhi 110001.

‘The Company’s business activity falls under “automotive component". Primary ptoducts manufactured
by the Company are engine valves.

The financial statements of the Company ate approved for issuance by the Company's Board of
Directors on 13 May 2024

2. Material accounting policy information
2.1.1 Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepated in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind
- AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with Rule 3 of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2016 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2017 issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA?).

The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention on accrual and going
concern basis, except for the following assets and liabilities:-

i) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments)
if) Investments in unquoted equity shares measured at fair value
ifi) Defined benefit liabilities are measured at present value of defined benefit obligation.
T iv) Certain financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is
initially adopted or a tevision to an existing accounting standard requires 2 change in the accounting
policy hitherto in use.

The financial statements are presented in INR “(Indian Rupees)” and all values are rounded to the
nearest million, except when otherwise indicated.

2.1.2 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly obsetvable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
patticipants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosute putposes 1s determined on such a basis

and 1fe




SPR Engenious Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Inn addition, for financial reporting purpose, fair value measurement are categorised into level 1, 2, or 3
based on the degtee to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in the entirety, which are described as follows:

- Level 1: This level includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted)

1n active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: This level includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using mnputs other than quoted
prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (ie., as prices)
or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

- Level 3: This level includes financial assets and liabilities measured using inputs that are not based on
obsetvable market data (unobsetvable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using a

- valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current

market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.
2.1.3 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current

classification

The Company classifies an asset as current asset when:

. it expects to realise the assct, or intends to sell or consume it, in its normal operating cycle;

. it holds the asset primatily for the purpose of trading.
. it expects to realise the asset within twelve months after the reporting petiod; ot

* = the asset is cash or a cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from bemg exchanged or used
to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:

. it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

. it holds the liability primatily for the purpose of trading

. the liability 1s due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting petiod; ot

. it does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its

classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.




SPR Engenious Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash or cash equivalents. The Company’s normal operating cycle is twelve months.

2.2. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions.

The preparation of the financial statements is in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
and requires the management to make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of
- assets and liabilities and disclosures telating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial
statements and the reported income and expenses duting the yeat. The management believes that the
estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could
differ due to these estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates are
recognised in the periods in which the results are known / materialise ihformation, about significant
areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following

notes.

* Deferred tax: Deferred tax is recognised in tespect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used
for taxation purposes. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. '

* Impairment of financial assets and non-financial assets: The impairment provisions for financial assets
are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected cash loss rates. The Company uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on
Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the end of
each reporting period.

* Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets: value of propetty, plant and equipment and intangibles
at the end of each reporting period. Factors such as changes in the expected level of usage could
significantly impact the economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets. Consequently, the
future depreciation charge could be revised and may have an impact on the profit of the future years.

* Estimation of defined benefit obligation: Employee benefit obligations are determined using actuatial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments. These include the estimation of the approptiate discount rate, future salary increases and
mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, the employee
benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date.

* Estimation for expected ctedit losses of trade receivables: Trade receivables do not carry any interest
and are stated at their normal value as reduced by approptiate allowances for estimated irrecoverable
amounts. Individual trade receivables are written off when management believes that there is uncertainty
of collections. Provision is recognised based on the expected credit losses, which are the present value of
the cashshortfall over the expected life of the financial assets.




SPR Engenious Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

* Incremental rate of borrowing for lease accounting: The Company cannot readily determine the
interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease
liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar
term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company ‘would have
to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the IBR using
observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-
specific estimates.

2.3.1 Revenue recognition
Sale of products/services

Revenue from the sale of products or services is recognized upon transfer of control to customers.
Revenue is measured at the amount of consideration which the Company expects to be entitled to in
‘exchange for transferring distinct goods ot setvices to a customer as specified in the contract, excluding
amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example, taxes and duties collected on behalf of the
government). A receivable is recognized upon satisfaction of performance obligations as per the

contracts and is measured at transaction price.
Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or setvices transferred to the
customet. If the Company performs by transferting goods or services to a2 customer before the customer
pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration
that is conditional.

Contract liahilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Company transfers goods or setvices to the customer, a contract lability is
recognised when the payment is made ot the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

2.3.2 Other income
Interest Income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on
time basis, by reference to the ptincipal outstanding and at the interest rate as applicable.

Miscellaneous income

arg recognised on accrual basis, except where there are uncertainties in realisation /

yme and in such case income is recognisec[«dﬁ?i:i-ééﬂi;sa{ion / certainty.
//::“/\;‘/’w < "*190\
g




SPR Engenious Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
2.4.1. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in production or supply of goods and services, or for
administrative purpose, are stated at historic cost, net of accumulated depreciation (net of input tax
- credits availed) including taxes and other incidental expenses related to acquisition, installation and
borrowing cost on loan taken for the acquisition of qualifying assets upto the date the assets are ready
for their intended use.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if:
(a) it is ptobable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and

(b)  the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

- Subsequent expenditure can be capitalised only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

An item of propetty, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal, or when no futute economic
benefit are expected to atise from the continued use of assets. Any gain and loss arising on the disposal
of or retirement is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the cartying amount of
the assets and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

2.4.2. Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset
will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

Intangible assets held for use in production or supply of goods and services, or for administrative
© putpose, are stated at are stated at historic cost, net of accumulated depreciation (net of input tax credits
availed) including taxes and other incidental expenses related to acquisition, installation and borrowing
cost on loan taken for the acquisition of qualifying assets upto the date the assets ate ready for their
mntended use.

An item of intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefit are
expected to arise from the continued use of assets. Any gain and loss arising on the disposal of or
retirement is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the
assets and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

2.4.3. Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress represents expenditure incurred in respect of capital projects under
development and are cartied at cost. Cost includes related acquisition expenses, development/
construction costs, borrowing costs and other direct expenditure.

2.4.4, Leases

Lessce Accounting




SPR Engenious Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

2. Right of use asset is recognised at the commencement of lease and measured at cost, consisting of
initial measurement of lease liability plus any lease payments made to the lessor at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received, initial estimate of the restoration costs and any
initial direct costs incurred by the lessee. Right-of-use assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets and impairment loss.

3. The lease liability is measuted in subsequent periods using the effective interest rate method.

4. Recognition and measutement exemption is availed for low-value assets and short term leases. Assets
‘of low value include IT equipment or office furniture. No monetary threshold has been defined for
low-value assets. Short-term leases are defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months o less.

2.5. Depreciation and amortisation

Depteciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its

estimated residual value.

The Company is following written down value method in case of Furniture, fixtures and office
equipment and straight line method in respect of other assets.

Depreciation on tangible property, plant and equipment has been provided as per the useful life
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of the certain categoties of
assets, in whose case the life of the assets has been assessed based on technical advice, taking into

account the nature, the estimated usage, operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement,
anticipated technological changes and maintenance practices etc. Following are the estimated useful lives

of various category of assets used:
Building - thirty years

Plant and equipment

- General - twenty yeats

- Electric installation / equipment - fifteen years
Vehicles - five years

Furniture and fixture / Office equipment - five years

Right of use assets under leases - over the lease pertod

All intangible assets ate amortised on straight-line method over their estimated uscful life as under.

Computer software - three years

Assets costing up to Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition.

A recigfibn is provided in the year of sale.
KG.Marg Jp—




SPR Engenious Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the yéat ended 31 March 2024

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, and the effect of any changes in estimate is accounted for on a prospective basis.

2.6. Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a patty to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

- "Fransaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition ot issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not at fair value through profit ot loss are added to the fair value on initial recognition.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets ate accounted for at trade date basis. Regular way
purchases ot sales are purchase or sales of financial assets that require delivety of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Classification of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised
cost

1) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect

contractual cash flows; and

i) The contractual terms of the instrument give tise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and intetest on the principal amount outstanding,

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fait value
through other comprehensive income (except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair
value through profit ot loss on initial recognition):

1} The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual

cash flows and selling financial assets; and

1) The contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial asset which are not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently measuted at fair
value through profit or loss (FVIPL).

‘Irade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component ot for which the Company has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. The

average credit period is 20 days

Investments




SPR Engenious Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the yeat ended 31 March 2024
Investments in mutual fund are measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost ot at fair value through profit or loss

(FVTPL). For trade and othet payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the
catrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Frair value is determined in the manner described in note no 38.
2.7. Detivative financial instruments

The Company enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest
rate and foreign exchange rate tisks, including foreign exchange forward contracts and cross currency

interest rate swaps.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or
loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and
effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in the statement of profit
and loss depends on the nature of the hedging relationship and the nature of the hedged item.

(1) Financial assets or financial liabilities, at fair value through profit or loss.

This category has derivative financial assets or liabilities which are not designated as hedges. Although
the Company believes that these detivatives constitute hedges from an economic perspective, they may
not qualify for hedge accounting under Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments. Any derivative that is either
not designated a hedge, or is so designated but. is ineffective as per Ind AS 109, is categotized as a
financial asset or financial liability, at fait value through profit or loss.

Derivatives not designated as hedges ate tecognized initially at fair value and attributable transaction
costs are recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss when incutred. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these detivatives are measured at fair value through the statement of profit and loss and the
resulting exchange gains or losses are included in the statement of profit and loss. Assets/liabiliies in
this category are presented as current assets/cutrent liabilities if they ate either held for trading or are
cxpected to be realized within 12 months after the Balance sheet date.

Fair value is determined in the manner described in note no 38.

2.8. Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing each product

to its present location and condition is accounted for as follows:

1) Raw materials, loose tools and store and spares : Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on
weighted ayerage basis. Raw matetals and other supplies held for use in the production of inventories

are noyFEEM/@n below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected
' ety
to b COst. s _’_Qﬁ}
Y a
& \2
f\/ (= b
l "’ ;
N Ny
N CCO\)@‘



SPR Engenious Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

1) Work in progress: cost includes cost of ditect materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing

overheads based on the normal operating capacity.

u1) Finished goods: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing

overheads based on the normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the otdinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.9. Foreign curtency transactions and translations

"Transactions in foreign currency are recorded on initial recognition at the exchange rate prevailing on or

closely approximating to the date of transaction.

At the end of each reporting petiod, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measuted in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are tecognised in the statement of profit and loss in the petiod
in which they arise except exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain

foreign currency tisks.

‘For foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at amortised cost or FVTPL, the exchange
differences are recognised in statement of profit and loss except for those which are designated as
hedging instruments in a hedging relationship.

2.10. Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits:

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Contribution towards Provident Fund is paid as per the statutory provisions. These benefits are charged
to the statement of profit and loss of the year when they become due. For defined post-employment
employee benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit
method, with actuarial valuations being cartied out at the end of each annual reporting period.
Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the return on plan
assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit
recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement
recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not
reclassified to the statement of profit and loss. Past service cost is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the

beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised
ENy O - .
<
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1) Setvice cost (including current service cost, past setvice cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements);

1} Net interest expense ot income; and
iii) Re-measurement.
Short-term and other long-term employee benefits:

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries in the period
the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in

exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measuted at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Leave availment / encashment benefit is provided as per Company’s scheme. Employees are entitled to
accumulate leaves subject to certain limit as per Company’s scheme.

Liabilities for compensated absence that are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees rendered the related service, ate measured at the present value
of expected future payment to be made in respect of setvice provided by employees up to the end of
reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefit are discounted using the market
yields at the end of reporting petiod. Remeasurement as a result of experience adjustments and change in
actuarial assumptions are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Employee benefits in the form of long service awards is provided as per Company scheme. The liability
1s determined through actuarial valuation using projected unit credit method.

2.11. T'axes on income

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax. Income tax expense is recognized in net
profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly
In equity, in which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income. Curtent income tax for current
and prior periods is recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax
authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
Balance Sheet date. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it
1s no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income
in the yeats in which those temporary differences ate expected to be recovered ot settled. The effect of
changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or expense in
the period that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is




SPR Engenious Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Match 2024

‘The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right
to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, ot to realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.12, Botrowing costs

Bortowing costs directly attributable to the acquisidon, construction ot production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessatily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use ot sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the petiod in which they
ate incurred.

2.13. Earnings per shate

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit or loss attributable to the owners of the
Company by weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year. The
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events of bonus

issue, share split and any new equity issue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings pet share, profit or loss attributable to the owners of the
Company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.14. Impairment of assets

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment, tight-of-use assets and intangible assets ot cash
generating units are reviewed at each Balance sheet date for impairment. If any indication of impairment
exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated and impairment is tecognised, if the cartying
amount of these assets exceeds their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the
net selling price and their value in use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the future cash flows to
their present value based on an appropriate discount factor. When there is indication that an impaitment
loss recognised for an asset in eatlier accounting petiods no longer exists or may have decteased such
teversal of impairment Joss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets
measured at amortised cost. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing

component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss.
2.15. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be tequited to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The Amp sfehised as a provision is the best estimate of ﬂle@gg_sgderaﬂon required to settle the
prespat ophgation afithe end of the reporting petiod, taking mtoécc’&mt th ﬁsks and uncertaintics
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sutrounding the obligation. When some ot all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are
expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

2.16. Contingent liabilities

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not requite an outflow of resources.

When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood on outflow
of resources is remote, no provision or disclosute is made.

2.17 Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with
any of the Company’s other components, and for which discrete financial information is available. The
Commpany 1s primarily engaged in the manufacturing and assembling of automotive components for the
automotive industry. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Company’s
Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM?”) to miake decisions about resources to be allocated to the
segments and assess theit performance. CODM believes that these are governed by same set of risk and
returns hence CODM reviews as one balance sheet component.

2.18 Recent accounting pronouncements which are not yet effective

As on the date of these financial statements, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA’) has not issued any
standards/amendments to accounting standards which are effective from T April 2024.
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Bs. milliony
Particulars Buildings Plant and Furnituze and Vehicles Office Toral
t fixtures qui it
Year ended 31 March 2023
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount - - - - - -
Additions 16.93 - - - - 1693
Disposals - - - - - -
Closing gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2023 16.93 - - - - 16.93
Accumulated depredartion
Qpening accumulated - - - - - -
Depreciation chatged during the petiod - R - - - -
Disposals - - - - - -
Closing accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2023 - - - - - -
WNet carrying amount as at 31 March 2023 16.93 - - - - 16.93
Year ended 31 March 2024
Gross carrying amount )
Openiig gross carrying amount 16.93 - - - - 16.93
Additions 132.94 205.84 174 0.05 3.93 344.50
Disposals - - - - - -
Closing pross carrying amount as at 31 March 2024 149.87 205.84 174 0.05 3.93 36143
A lated & ryr
Cpening accumulated depreciation - - - - - -
Depreciation charged during the year 0.68 048 0.9¢ 0.00 1.84 3.90
Disposals - - - - . -
Closing accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2024 0.68 048 0.0 0.0 1.84 3.90
INet carrying amount as at 31 March 2024 149.19 205.36 0.34 0.05 2.0 357,53
Notes:
i} The Company has not revalued property, plant and equipment during the: year.
&) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in tle name of the Company as at the halance sheet date.
4. Capital work-in progress
; As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
al;
Farticulars Rs, milien Rs, million
Balance at the beginning of the year 099 -
Additions during the year 488.31 17.92
Capitalised / adjusted during the year (328.28; {16.93)
Balance at the end of the year 16102 0.9%
Mote: The capitabwork-in-progress mainly consist of property, plant and equipment under construction / installation end which are not teady for use at year end.
Capital work in progress ageing schedule is as under:- Rs. million
As on 31 March 2024
Particulars Amount in capital work in progress for a period of v — Toral
Less than 1 year 1.2 years 2-3 years ore than
years
Projects in progress*¥ 161.62 - - . . 161.02

Projects temporarily suspended

*The projects in progress as on 31 Macch 2024 will be completed witlin 1 yeas.

Thereare no such projects under capital-work-in progress, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared ¢ its original plan as of 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,

Capital work in progress ageing schedule is as under:- Rs. million
As on 31 March 2023
Particulars Amount in capital work in progress for a period of
More than 3 Total
Less than 1year 1-2 years 2-3 years
years
Projects in progress® 0.99 - - - 0.99

Projects temporarily suspended

(This space b beew intentionally Ieff blank)
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5. Intangible assets

Rs. millicn

Particulars

Computer software

‘Total

Year ended 31 March 2023

Gross carrying amount
Opening gross cartying amount
Additions

Disposals

Closing gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2023

Accumulated amortisation

Opening accumulated amortisation
Amortisation charged during the period
Disposals

Closing accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2023

Net carrying amount as at 31 Masrch 2023

Year ended 31 March 2024

Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount
Additions

Disposals

Closing gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2024

Accumulated amortisation
Opening accumulated amortisation
Amortisation charged duting the year
Disposals

0.02

0.02

Closing accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2024

0.02

0.02

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2024

011

6.11

6. Right of use assets

Rs. million

Particulars

Land

Total

Year ended 31 March 2023

Gross carrying amount
Opening pross catrying amount
Additions

Disposals

280,77

280.77

Closing gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2023

280.77

280.77

Accumulated amortisation

Opening accumulated amortisation
Amottisation charged duting the period
Disposals

0.17

0.17

Closing accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2023

0.17

0.17

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2023

280.60

280.60

Year ended 31 March 2024

Gross carrying amount
Opening gross catrying amount
Additions
Disposals/adjustment

280.77

1.93

280.77

1.93

Closing gross cartying amount as at 31 March 2024

278.84

278,54

Accumulated amortisation
Opening accumulated amortisation
Amottisation charged duting the year
Disposals/adjustment

0.17
2.86

0.17
2.86

Closing accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2024

3.03

3.03

Net carrying at 31 March 2024

275.81

275.81
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7. Investments

Non-current investments (Unquoted)

Equity instrument:

Investment in a subsidiary carried at amortised cost

SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited (formerly EMF Innovations
Psivate Limited) (fully paid up of Rs 18 each)* {refer note 43)

SPR Takahata Precision India Private Ltd. (formerly Takahara
Precision India Private Limited) {(fully paid up of Rs 10 each) (refer
note 43)

As at
31 March 2024
No. of shares Rs. million
1,16,34,499 1,464.91
11,37,70,060 634.09
12,54,04,499 2,099.00

As at
31 March 2023
No. of shares Rs, million
61,22.688 780.03
61,22,688 780.03

*The Company has infused Rs. 700:00 million by way of subscription to the equity share capital of SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited (formerly EMF Innovations
Private Limited) (SEMFI'} during the year ended 31 March 2024, SEMFI has allotted 55,11,811 equity shares to the Company on 01 March 2024 on rights issue hasis.

Current investment (Unquoted)

Carcied at fait value through Statement of Profit and loss

Investment in Mutual fund (Liquid fund) Units of Face value of
Rs 1000 each

- 72,616 units (previous year: nil) UTI Liquid Fund - Direct Plan
Growth

- 50,353.01 units {previous year: nil) HSBC Liquid Fund-Direct Growth

Aggregate book vajue of unquoted investments
Aggregate market value of unquoted investments
Aggregate value of impairment in value of investments

8. Other financial Assets
(At amortised cost)

Non-curent;
Security deposits

Bank deposits more than 12 months
Drerivative instrument-call option asset (refer note 38)

Current:

Interest accrued on fixed deposits

Deposit with banks held as margin money

28741

120.67
408.08

405.31
408.08

As at

31 March 2024

Rs. million
333
41.00
44.33

5.24
69.53
74.77

(This space har been intentionally left blank)

As at
31 March 2023
Rs. million

120.00

120.06

0.69

0.69
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9. a) Deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred tax liability

Impact of difference between tax depreciation and
depreciation, amortisation charged in books

Deferred tax assets
Unabsorbed depteciation
Carrted forward business loss
Pre-incorporation expenses

Net deferred tax (liability)/ assets*

Asat

Rs. million

(0.22)
0.05
2.07
282

EAL]

4,72

As at

Rs. million

0.22
{0.22)
0.05
2.07
282

4.94

4.72

*On account of lack of virtual certainty of future taxable income,deferred tax asset has not been recongnised during the year ended 31 March 2024,

19. Other non-current assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)

i) Capital advances
ii) Balance with government authorities

11. Other current assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)

i} Balance with government authorities
ii) Prepaid expenses
iif) Other agsests

As at

Rs. million
47.73
1,17
48.90

72.28
012
6-21
78.61

(This space hax been intentionally left blank)

As at
Rs. million
(.51
(.51
2.09
2.09
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12, Inventories
(valued at Jower of cost or net realisable value)

As at
31 March 2024
Rs., million
Raw material and componeats 2,02
{includes in transit Rs. 1.00 million (previous year: Rs. nil milfion})
Work-in-progress 0.01
(includes in transit Rs. nil million (previous year: Rs. nil million))
Stores and spares 4.06
(includes in transit Rs. nil million (previous year: Rs. nil million))
Loose tools 0.57
666
13. Trade receivables
As at
31 March 2024
Rs. million

Cursent
Trade recetvables considered good - Secured -
Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured* 4.78
Receivable which have significant increase in credit dsk -
Credit impaired -

4.78

* There is no trade receivable which have significant increase in credit risk.

*No trade or othex reccivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person.

*Trzde receivables includes Rs.1.14 million {previous year: Rs nil million) due to related pacties (refer note 31).

Trade receivable ageing as at 31 March 2024 is as under:

Asat

31 March 2023

Rs. million

As at

31 March 2023

Rs. million

Rs. million

Outstanding for following perieds from due date of payment

Particulars Ul;bl“ed Notdue Less than 6 months -2 2-3 More than
ues years Total
& months - 1year years 3 years
years
(i) Undisputed trade receivables ~ considered good - 4.78 - - - - - 478
(i) Undisputed trade receivables ~which have significant } : } _ _
increase in credit risk
{iit) Undisputed trade receivables — credit impaired - - - - - - - -
(iv}) Disputed trade reccivables—considered good - - - - - - - -
(v) Disputed trade receivables — which have significant _ B .
increase in credit risk
(vi) Dispurted trade seceivables — credit impaited - - - - - - - -
Total - 4.78 - - - - - 4.78
14. Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances
' Asat Asat
31 March 2024 3% March 2023
Rs. million Rs. million
i) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand - -
- curent accounts 5.04 10.03
5.04 10.03
ii) Other bank balances
- Deposits with banks , with original maturity more ’
thapn 3 months but less than glmonths v 70.00 63.00
70.00 65.00
75.04 75.03
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15. Equity sharc capital

Authorised Shares
35,49,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each {previous year 12,49,00,000
equity shares of Rs, 10 each)

1,00,000 preference shace of Rs.10 each {previcus year 1,00,00,000 equity
shares of Rs. 10 each)

a. Issued, subscribed and fully paid. up shares
35,00,06,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each (previous year 12,00,00,000
equity shares of Rs. 10 each)

b, Terms/riplns arrached 19 eqnity shares

As at

31 March 2024
Rs, million

3,549.00
180

3,550.60

3,500.00
3,500.00

Asg at
31 March 2023
Rs. million

1,249.00
100

1,250.60

1,200.00
1,200.00

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs, 10 per share, Each holder of equity share is entitled to dividend and one vote per share. In the event of liquidation, the
equity shaccholdets are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amount, in propertion to their shareholding.

¢, Recondiliation of bers of shares ding at the hegi

Authorised equity capital

Opening balance
Increase during the year

Closing balance

Authorised preference ghare capital

Openmg balance
Ingrease ducng the year
Closing balance

Issued equity capital

Opening balance
Adds Tssued during the year*
Closing balance

*Dunng the current year, the Company has issued 23,00,00,000 equity shares to the Holding Company.

d. Details of equity shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Shriram Pistons & Rings Limited ¥
* including nominee shaccholders

€) Details of shares held by prometers at the end of the year

MName of promoter

Sheram Pistons & Rings Limited *
* including nominee sharcholders

ing and at the end of reporting year
Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
No. of shares Rs. million No. of shares Rs. million
12,49,00,000 1,249.00 - -
23,00,00,000 2,300.80 12,49,00,000 1,249.00
35,49,00,000 3,549.00 12,49,00,000 1,249.00
Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
MNeo. of shares Rs. million No. of shares Rs. million.
1,00,000 1.00 - -
R - 1,00,000 1.00
1,00,000 160 1,00,000 Lo
As at As ac
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
No. of shares Rs. million No. of shares Rs. million
12,00,00,000 1,200.00 - -
23,00,00,000 2,300.00 12,00,00,000 1,260.00
35,00,00,000 3,500.00 12,00,00,000 1,200.00
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
No. of shares % sharcholding No, of shares % sharcholding
35,00,00,000 100.00 12,08,00,000 100.00
Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
° % Change duri;
% sharcholding A Change No. of shares % sharcholding ° e curing
during the year the vear
100.00 - 12,00,00,000 100.00 -

£) The Company has not issued ary bonus shares nor there has been any buyback of shares nor any shares has been allotied as fully paid up pursuant to contracts without payment being received in

cash during the current year and preceeding year,

16. Other equity Ke. million
Particalars Rcsen"e and slfrplu.s Total
Retained carnings
Balance as at 31 March 2022 - -
Loss for the year (5.82) (552}
Expenses on issue of shate capital (net of deferred tax) (B-40) (8.40)
Balance as at 31 March 2623 (1422 14.22)
Loss for the year (3:9% (5.99)
Expenses on issue of share capinl (20.70)
Ot cemncphiMiye income for the year, net of tax 003
(40.87)

Al (Dang 7a
(3
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17. Provisions

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs, million Rs. million
Non-current
Provision for compensated absences (refer note 32) 177 -
Provision for gratuity (refer note 32) 3.51 -
5.28 -
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current Rs. million Rs. million
Provision foz cornpensated absences (tefer note 32) 1.24 -
Provision for gratuity (refer note 32) 0.17 -
1.41 -
18, T'rade payabies
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. million Rs. million
- Total outstanding dues of micto enterpaises and small enterprises 0.41 -
- Total cutstanding dues of creditoss other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 38.49 747
38.9¢ 747

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Unbilled dues Not due
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 yeass More than 3 years Total
@ MSME - 0.40 0.01 - - - 0.41
(1 Dhsputed dues — MSHE - - - - - - -
(i) Orhers f 15.26 2513 f N - 3549
@)Disputed  dues - Others - - - - - - -
- 13.66 25.24 - - - 38.90

Ouistanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Unbilled dues Not due
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years  More than 3 years Total
@ MSME N N - N - - .
(1) Disputed dues — MSME - - - - - R -
(it}) Others - 7.47 B - B N 747
(tv)Disputed  dues - Others - - - - - - B
- TAT - » B 7 TAT

Trade payable includes Rs. 3.69 million (previous year Rs. 0.03 million) due 1o related paries {refer note 31)

19, Other financial liabilities

(At amoztised cost) As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. million Rs. million
Capital creditors 110.15 727
Payable on account of business acquisition (refer note 44) - 55,00
Eaployee welated payables 2.26 -
112,41 62.27
20. Other liabilities
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. miilion Rs, million
Snanuory dues 306 397
3.06 4.97
o
&

(This space has boen fntentionally kft blank)
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21. Revenue from operations

Year ended Period ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. Million Rs. Million
Sale of products 2.71 -
271 -
Timing of revenue recognition:
Goods transferred at a point in time 271 -
Contract balances
There are no contract balance as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.
Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price
Year ended Period ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. million Rs. million
Revenue from contract with customer as per the contract price 2.85 -
Adjustments made to contract price on account of :-
Less: Discounts 0.14 -
Revenue from contract with customers 2.7 "
Performance obligation
Enformation about the Company’s performance obligation is summarised below:
Sale of products
Revenue from the sale of products is recognized upon transfer of control to customers.
22, Other income
Year ended Period ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. million Rs, million
Interest income
- Bank deposits* 11.72 5.15
- Foreign exchange fluctuation gain (net) 0.81 -
- Net gain on sale/fair valuation of current investrent# 19.12 -
- Others* 0.0t -
31.66 5.15

*Underlying assets on which income is recognised at amortised cost.

#Underlying assets on which income is recognised at fair value through profit and loss. Includes Rs. 2.77 million {(previous year Rs. nil

miliion) on account of faix valuation of investments.

23, Cost of material consumed

Year ended Period ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. million Rs. million
Cost of raw material and components consumed 0.76 -
Cost of packing material consumed 0.03 -
0.79 -
24. (Increase) / decrease in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
Year ended Period ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. million Rs. million
Inventories at the end of the year
Work-in-progress 00 -
Finished goods - -
0.01 -

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Worl-in-progress
Finished goods -
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25, Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages
Contrdbution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

26. Finance costs

Interest expense on lease liabilities
Interest expense on inter-corporate borrowings

27. Depreciation and amortisation expense

- Depreciation on property , plant and equipment (refer note 3) *
- Depreciation on right of use assets {refer note 6)
- Depreciation on intangible assets (refer note 5)

28. Other expenses

Stores and spares consumed

Rates and taxes

Auditor's remuneration(refer note 29}
Legal and professional expenses

Office and general administratdon expense
Travelling expenses

Reat{refer note 33)

Miscellaneous expenses

29. Auditor's remuneration
(excluding goods and service tax, as applicable)

As auditor:

- Audit fee

- Limited review

- Reimbursement of expenses

30. Eamings per share

Loss attributable to equity sharcholders (Rs. millien)

Weighted average number of equity shares (no. of shares)
Earaings per share

- Basic (Rs.)

- Diluted (Rs)

Year ended
31 Masch 2024
Rs, million
13.53
0.43
0.11
14.07

Year ended

31 March 2024

Rs. million

1.92
1.65
3.57

Year ended
31 March 2024
Rs. miltion

3.90
2.86
0.02
6.78

Year ended
31 Marsch 2024

Rs, million

230

2.51

0.47

4.31

1.89

1.26

0.34

2.08

15,16

Year ended

31 March 2024

Rs. million

0.23
0.23
0.01
0.47

Year ended

31 March 2024

{5.96)

19,32,60,274

(0.03)
©.03)

Period ended
31 March 2023

Rs. million

Period ended
31 March 2023

Rs, million

o
0.25

0.36

Period ended
31 Masch 2023

Rs. miillion

0.17

0.17

Period ended
31 March 2023

Rs. miflion
0.26
020
11.83

0.05

12.34

Period ended
31 March 2823

Rs. million

0.15
0.05

0.20

Period ended
31 March 2023

(5.82)
457,37 433

©.13)
©.13)
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3L Related party disclosure

As per Indian Accountiag Standard — 24 the Company’s related parties and transactions with them are disclosed below :

A. List of related parties:
Holding company Shriram Pistons & Rings Limited
Subsidiary company SPR EMF Innovations Private Eamited {formerly EMF Innovations Private Limited)
SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited {(w.e.f 16 Ocrober 2023) (formerly Takahata Precision India Private
Limited)
Ecy management pessonnel Sh Krishnakumac Stinivasan, Whole-time Director
Shd Luv Decpak Shriram
Smt Meenakshi Dass
B. Related party transactions
(i) Transactions during the year
Ks. mullten
Parnticolars Holding Comapany Subsidiary “Total
31 March 2024 | 31 Mareh 2023 | 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2624 { 31 March 2023
Share Capital allotment 230000 1,200.00 - - 2,300.00 1,200.00
Investonent - B 131857 780.03 1,318.97 780,03
Loan taken during pedod £48.40 15.00 - - 148.40 15.00
Loan repaid during period £48.40 15.00 - - 148.40 15.00
Interest paid on Inter-corposate loan 1.65 0.25 - - L65 0.25
Amount paid for resources and facilities received 300 0.66 - - 3.00 0.66
Amount paid towards se-imbursement of expenses 5.53 6.03 - - 5.83 0.03
Amount received towards re-imbursement of expenses - - 114 - L4 -
Aot paid towards marketing commission 003 - - - 0.03 -
Amount paid towards lease rental 6.26 - - - 0.26 -
Purchase of goods/capital goods 5.46 - - - 5.46 -
Purchase of right-of-use assets - 259.74 - - - 26%.74
(i) Balances due from/to the related parties
Partculars Holding Comapany Subsidiary Taral
31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Amount payable/{recoverzble) 369 0.03 (1.19) . 255 0.03
Note :

Al the transaction with the related parties are made on tecrns equivalent to those that prewail in acm's length transactions, Qutstanding balances at the yeas-end are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No expenses
has been recopnized in the current year in respect of bad or doubtful debts/advances and fucther no specific provision for doubtfl debts/advances has been made in respect of outstanding balances.




SPR Engenious Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
32. Employee benefits

The Company has classified the various employee benefits as under :

1) Defined contribution plans
The Company has recognised the following amount in the staternent of profit and loss:

Year ended Period ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Rs. million Rs. million
Employers' contribution to provident fund 0.31 -
0.31 -

i) Defined benefix plans - Gratuity
In accordance with Ind AS 19, actuarial valuation of defined benefit plans was done for gratuity and details of the same are
given below :

Year ended Period ended

Particulars
31 Match 2024 31 March 2023

Rs. million Rs. million
Amount recognized in statement of profit and loss '
Current service cost 0.08 -
Net Interest cost on defined benefit/ liability 0.04 -
Total expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 0.12 -
Actual contribution and benefit payments for the year
Actual benefit payments - -
Actual conttibutions - -
Net asset / (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligation 3.68 )
Fair value of plan assets - -
Funded status [surplus / (deficit)] (3.68) }
Net asset / (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet (3.68) )

{This space has been iutentionally keft blank)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Change in defined benefit obligations (DBO) duting the year
Present value of defined benefit obligations at beginning of the year

Current service cost

Interest cost

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (Actuarial (gains)/losses)

- Changes in demographic assumptions
- Changes in financial assumptions

- Experience variance

Benefits paid

Transfer in

Present value of defined benefit obligations at the end of the year

Provision for gratuity
Non-cutrent

Current

Change in fair value of plan assets during the year
Plan assets at beginning of the year

Expected return on plan assets

Conttibuttons

Actuaral gain / (loss)

Return on Plan assets excluding amount recognised in net interest
expenses

Benefits paid
Plan assets at the end of the year
Actual return on plan assets

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income
Actuarial (gains)/ losses

- Changes in demographic assumptions

- Changes in financial assumptions

~ Experience variance

(Retum)/loss on plan assets, excluding amount recognized in net
interest expense

0.\ New Delti /1]

=

Year ended
31 March 2024

Petiod ended
31 March 2023

Rs. million

0.08
0.04

(0.03)

3.59

Rs. miillion

3.68

3.51
0.17

(0.03)

(0.03)

(This space has been tntentionally left blank)
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Year ended
Actuarial assumptions for gratuity 31 March 2024
Discount rate 7.15%
Salary escalation 9.00%
Attrition/ withdrawal rate 5%, p.a.
Mormlity table used 100% of IALM 2012-
14

Estimate of the future salary increasc is based on facters such as inflation, seniorty, promotions, demand and supply in employment masket.

Year ended 31 March 2024
Impact on liability

Sensitivity Analysis for significant actuarial assumptions

Particulars Increase Decrease

Rs, million Rs. miltion

Discount Rate +100 basis points +100 basis points - 0.37
-100 basis points -10) basis points 0.42 -
Salary Growth Rate  +100 basis points +100 basis points 0.41 -

-10% basis points -100 basis points - 0.36

Attriton Rate +100 basis points +100 basis points - 0.10
-100 basis points -100 basis points 013 -

Mortality Ratc* +100 basis points +100 basis points - (0.00}
~100 Basis pomis -100 basis pomts 0.00 -

*Rounded off to zero

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other
agsumptions constant. The sensilivity analysis present above may not be representative of the acmal change in the defined obfigation as it is unlikely that the
change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be co-related.

Risk factors in actuarial assumptions

Interest rate risk: The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates, A fall in intceest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate cost of
providing the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the valuc of the Hability.

Liquidity risk: This is the risk that the Company is not able to meer the short term gratuity payouts. This may arise due to non availability of enough cash/
cash equivalent to meet the liabilities or holding of illiguid assets not being sold in time.

Salary escalation risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in future.
Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan patticipants from the rate of increase in salary use to determine the present value of obligation will
have a bearing on the plan's ability.

Demographic risk: The Company has used certzin mortality and attsition assumption in valuation of the liabitity, The Company is exposed to the risk of
actual experience turning out to be worse compared to the assumpticn.

Asset liability mismatching or market riske The duration of the liability is Jonger compared to duration of assets, exposing the Company to market risk for
volatilities/ fall in interest rate.

Investment risks  The probability or likelihaod of occurrence of losses relative to the expected retumn on any particular investment.

The iollowing payments are expected future cash flows to the defined benefir plan (undiscounted in future years):

Year ended
31 March 2024
Rs. mitlion
Year 1 0.17
2-5 Years 0.75
6 -10 Years 1.22
More than 10 years 6.72

Regulatory framework/ governance / benefits under the plan:

The gratuity benefit is a post employment benefit. kt is calcuiated at the terminal salary (Basic+VIDA) at the time of separation of the employee according to the
provisions of Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,

i Year ended Year ended
i) Compensated absences 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Present value of defined benefit obligation 3.01 -
Funded status fsurplus / (deficit)] (3.01) -
Provision for gampensated absences
Non-cup 1.77 -
Curreh 1.24 -
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33. Leases !

The changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended 31 March 2024 are as follows:

Rs. million.
Particulars Right-of-use asset
Land
Balance as at 01 Apnl 2022 -
Addition 280.77
Deletion -
Amortisation of sight-of-use asset 0.17)
Balance as of 31 March 2023 280.60
Additon -
Deletion (1.93)
Amortisation of right-of-use asset (2.86)
Balance as of 31 March 2024 275.81
The movement in lease liabifities during the yeac ended 31 March 2024 is as follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs, million Rs. million
Balance at the beginning 2110 -
Addinons - 21.10
Deletions (1.92) -
Finance cost accrued duting the period 1.92 0.1
Payment of lease liabilities (1.92) 0.11)
Balance at the end 19.18 21.10
The break-up of current and non-current lease lizbilities as of 31 Macch 2024 35 as follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. million Rs, million
Current* 0.00 1.92
Nen-current 19.18 19.18
Total 19.18 21,10
*Rounded off to zero.
The details of contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis:
Year ended Year ended
31 Masrch 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. million Rs. million
Less than one year 192 1.92
One to five years 9.59 7.67
More than five years 17647 180.30
Total 187.98 1849.89

{Thi space has been intentionally kfi blank)
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The following are the amounts recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss:

For the year ended Period ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. million Rs. million
Depreciation expense of right of use assets 2.86 0.17
Interest expenses on lease liabilities 192 0.11
Expense relating to other than non-current leases {included in other expenses) # 0,54 -
Total amount recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss 5.12 0.28

# Lease payments not recognised as a liability

The Company has elected not to recogaise a lease liability for current leases (leases with an expected term of 12 months or less) or for leases of low value assets.
Payments made uader such leases are expensed on a straight-line basis. The Company does not have any liability to make vadable lease payments for the right-to-
use the underlying asset recognised in the financials.

Total cash cutflow for current leases for the year ended 31 March 2024 was Rs 0.34 million (31 Macch 2023 Rs nil million).

The Company's leasing activities by type and nature of right-of-use asset recognised on balance sheet is given below:-

No. of rightof Range of remaining  Average remaining

use assets leased term (in years) fease term
Land
- 31 March 2024 1 3to 99 97
« 31 March 2023 1 2ta 99 98

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

34. Capital and other commitments

Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs., million Rs. million
Estimated amount of contracts semaining to be exccuted on capital account 93.72 2.89

{net of advances).

The Company has other cornmitments, for purchase / sales orders which are issued after considering requirements as per operating cycle for pucchase / sale of
goeds, employee benefits including union agreements in normal course of business. The Company does not have any othee long term comnitments or material
non-cancellable contractual commitments, which may have a material impact on the financial statements.

(This space bas been intentionally left blank)
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35. Micro, Small and Medium enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act

The status of vendors under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 is based on certificate submitted by
vendors about their coverage under the provisions of MSMED Act, 2006.

Year ended Period ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. million Rs. million
Amount remaining unpaid to suppliers under MSMED as at the end of year
- Principal amount * ) 7.63 -

- Interest due thereon

Amount of payments made to suppliers beyond the appeinted day during the year
- Principal amount
- Interest actually paid under section 16 of MSMED - -

Amount of interest due and payable for delay in payment (which has been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding nterest under MSMED

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year
- Interest accrued during the year
- Interest remaining unpatd as at the end of the year

Interest remaining disaliowable as deductible expenditure under the Income-tax Act, 1961
*Includes capital creditors Rs. 7.22 million {previous year Rs. nil million)

36. Segment information

The Company is engaged in a single segment i.e. the business of "automotive components” from whete it is eaming its revenue and mcurring
expense. The operating results are regularly reviewed and performance is assessed by its Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). All the
company's resources are dedicated to this single segment and all the discrete financial information is available for this segment.

Geographical information in respect of sale of products from customets is given below

Year ended Period ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rs. million Rs, million
Domestic 27 -
Export - .
2.7 -
Notes:

2) During the year ended 31 March 2024, three customer amounts to Rs 2.15 million (previous year: nil) represents 10% or more of the
Companys' revenue from operations.

37. The Company is availing the exemption from consolidation of Financial Statements under Sccond Proviso to Rule 6 of Companies
Account Rules,2016 and paragraph 31 of IND AS-110. Financial statements prepared by the Company are separate Financial Statements.

(This space bas been intentionally left blank)




SFR Engenious Limited
Naotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

38, Fair value measurement

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of 31 March 2024 are as under:
Rs. million

Financial assets/

Particulars (ﬁ“"‘“cf‘:i'rl;:‘l’:lt““) | foral carrying value | Total fair value
Financial assets/(financial liabilities)
Investment in mutual fund 408.08 408.08 408.08
Derivative instrument-
Call option asset 41.00 41.00 41.00
Total 449.08 44%.08 449.08

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categoties as of 31 March 2023 are as undex:
Rs. million

Financial assets/
(financial liabilities) at

fair value Total carrying value ‘Total fair value

Particulars

Financial asgets/ (financial liabilities)
Investment in mutual fund R - _
Call option asset - - -

Total - - -

ii) Fair value hierarchy

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and/or disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation techniques:

The following is the basis of categorising the financial instcuments measured at fair value into Level 1 to Level 3.

Level 1 - This level includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in 2ctive markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — This level includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (Le. derived from prices).

Level 3 - This level includes financial assets and lizbilities, measured using inputs that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs). Fair values ace
determined in whole or in part, using a valuation model based or assumptions that arc ncither supported by prices from chservable current market transactions in the same
instrument nor are they based on available market data.

Fair value hierarchy of assets and labilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of 31 March 2024:

Fair value measurement at end of the reporting period using

Particulars As at 31 March 2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets/ (liabilines)
Investment in mutual fund* 408.08 - 408.08 -
Destvauve instrument-
Call option asset** 41.00 - 41.00 -
Total 449.08 - 449.08 -

Fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilitics measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of 31 March 2023
(Rs. million)

Fair value measurement at end of the reporting petiod using
Pattdculars As at 31 March 2023

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets/ (liabilities)
Investment in mutuz] fund* - - -
Derivative instcument-
Call option asset** - -

Total - - - -

* The fair values are based on net asset value.
**The fair valuation of cail option asset is based on the simulated EBITDA using Monte Carlo simuiation.

(This space has been intentéonally feft benk)




SPR Engenicus Limited
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

iii) Financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at amortised cost are :

{Rs. million)
Particulars Carrying amount
As at 31 March 2024 | As at 31 March 2023

Financial assets
Trade receivables 4.78 -
Cash and cash equivalents 5.04 10.03
Other bank balances 70.00 65.00
Other fiancial assets 78.10 120.69
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 28.90 7.47
Lease Liabilities 19.18 21.10
QOther financial liabilities 112.41 62.27

The carrying value of shove financial 4ssets and financial liabilities approximate its fair value.

39, Capital management

The Compaay’s objective for managing capital is to ensure as under:
1) Ensure the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern
i) Maintzin a strong debt equity and capital gearing ratio in order to support business and maximize the shareholders” value.

i) Maititain an optimal capital structure,

iv) Compliance of financial covenants uader the horrowing facilities.

For the purpose of capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company and net debt
includes total liabilities, comprising interest bearing borrowings, excluding any dues to subsidiaries or group companies less cash and cash equivalents. The Company does not
have any debt cutstanding as on 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024

40. Additional regulatory information

. . . Year ended Period ended o
Particulars Unit Numerator Denominator 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2024 Varlations (%)
Current ratio* Times Total curzent assets Total current liabilities 4.17 1.02 308%
- . . Diebt consist of .
Debt: P ratio™** T v - - .
~equity ratio imes bocrowings Total equity
Earnings for debt Debt service =
Debt service coverage ratior+* Times sermice= NEt. PfOﬁt afer [ntezest and leiam:‘ 1.22 {14.95) -108%
tax + depreciation + payments+ principal
internest repayments
Return on cquity ratio# % Profit for the year Average total equity (0.26) 0.49) —47%
Inventory tumover ratinf# Times Cost of goods sold Average inventory 0.12 - 100%
‘Trade teceivables turaover ratiolf# Times Sales of products Average trade ceceivabl 1.13 - 100%
Trade payables tuenover ttoftH Times Cost of material + other Average trade payable 0.69 1.65 -58%
expenses
Average working
Net capital turnover ratioftt Times Sales of products eapital {ic toul 0.01 . 100%
current assets less
torak curtent liabilities)
MNet profit ratio#f# " Profit for the year Sales of products (2.23) - 100%%
- Profit before tax and Capital employed = o,
Return on capital loyed# % 0.0 0.62 -89%
¢ pitat employ § finance cost Net worth + Debt ©.on 0.62 ’
I ted £ Average invested
Return on investment® % .ncome generated from funds in treasury 9.37 - 100%
invested funds .
investment

*The variance is majotly on account of increase in current investments as compased to the previous period.
**The Company doesn't have any borrowings as on 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 and hence the ratio is not applicable.
*#*The variance is majorly on account of principal repayments of leases during the previous period.

#The variance is majorly on account of share capital issued during the year.

## The Company has commenced operations during the current year leading to variance in these ratios.
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41, Financial risk management

The Company’s principal financial liabilitics, comprise of loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the
Company’s operations, The Company’s principal financial assets indude trade and other ceceivables, and cash and cash equivalents that it derives directly from its
operations. The Company 2lso holds FVTPL current investments.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit nisk and Lquidity sisk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these sisks under appropriate
policies and procedures.

i) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in macket prces. Market risk comprises three types
of risk interest rate risk, curzency risk and other price risk, such as equity price tisk and commodity sisk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and
borrowings, deposits, FVTPL, current investments.

a) Foreign exchange risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk through its sales and purchases from overseas in forcign currencies mainly in USD and JPY. The Company enters into
derivative financial instruments such s foreign exchange farward contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. The exchange
rate between the tupee and foreign currencics has changed substantizlly in recent years and may fluctuate substantially in the future. Consequently, the results of the
Company’s operations may be adversely affected as the rupee appreciates/ depreciates against these currencies.

Sensitivity
Each percentage point change in the foreign exchange rates has an impact on profit before tax as follows:
Increase / (decrease)
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rs. million Rs. million
Exchange rate - increase in by 1% {0.06) -

LExchange rate - decrease by 1% 0.06 -

The Cornpany’s foreign currency sisk from financial instruments are. as under

(Foreign currency million)
Pardculars Currency As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
. Total Hedged Net Fotal Hedged Net
Trade payables UsD 0.05 - 0.05 - - -
JPY 4.28 - 4.28 - - -

b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s
exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates. The Company manages its
intecest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and vasizble rate loans and borrowings. To manage this, the Company enters fnto cross currency interest rate swaps,
in which it agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference benween fixed and vaciable rate interest amounts calculated by refecence to 2n agreed-upon notionel
principal amount.

The Company is not exposed to any significant /material interest mate sk,

ii) Credit risk

Credit sisk is the risk that counterparty will not mect its obligations under a financizl instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed
to credit gisk from its operating actvities {primarily tade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financizl institutions, foreign
exchange transactions and other financial instruments. Credit dsk is managed by Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit nsk
management.

Credit risk has always been managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of customers to
which the Company grants credit terms in the nonmal cousse of business. The Company uses expected credit loss model 1o assess the impairment loss and makes an
allowance for doubtful debts using expected credit loss madel on case to case basis. The Company doesn't have any expected credit loss 25 at 31 March 2024.

iify Liquidity risk
The Company’s objective is to maintain 2 balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of inter-corporate borrowings. Liquidity nsk is managed by
Company’s established policy & procedures made under liquidity risk management framework. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves,
baniing facilitics, and reserve borrowing facilites,by continuously forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profile of financial assets and Inbilities.

The financial assets and liabilities have been appropriately disclosed in financial statements as current and non-current portion, The maturity period of financial assets and
financial labilitics are as follows:

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Rs. million Rs. million
Less than 1year
-Trade payables 38.91 7.47
-Lease liabilities* .00 1.92
-Other financial liabilines 12,41 62.27

More than 1 year
-Lease Labilities 19.1% 19.18
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iv) Commodity price tisk

Commodity price risk is the fmancial risk on the company's profitability upon fluctuations in the prices of commodities since they are primarily driven by extemaf market
forces. Sharp fluctuztions in commodity prices can affect production costs, product pricing and eamings. This prce volatility makes it impesative for an entity 1o manage
the impact of commodity price fluctuations across its value chain to effectively manage its financial pecformance and profitability. To mitigate these dsks, the company
employs multiple levers, each chesen based on a cost benefit analysis and the extent of exposure to commodity price fluctuations. These include assessing the feasibility of
passing any adverse fluctuations onto customers through price increases, continuously engaging in cost optimisation initiatives and process improvement exescises. The
Company also explores options such as localizing imports/ implementing global souzcing strategies to ensure most cost effective sourcing. Based on the assessment by the
Company and afier factoring the ability to optimise costs and pass on prices to customers, no individual commaodity is expected to have a significant adverse impact on the
financial performance/profitability.

v) Other price risks
The Company has deployed its surplus funds into varous financial instruments including units of mutual funds. The Company is exposed to NAV (net asset vlue) price
nisks arising from investments in these funds. The value of these investments is impacted by movements in interest rates , liquidity and credit quality of underlying securities.

42, The Company does not have any long tezm contsacts for which there are any material foreseeable lnsses.

(Thés space bas been intentionally left blank)
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43. The Board of Ditectors of the Company in its meeting held ca 08 Febsuary 2023 had approved acquisition of majority stake of 75% in SPR Fzkzhata Precision India
Private Limited (formerly Takahata Precision India Private Limited) (STPIPLY) .The definitive agreements in connection with the acquisition transaction were executed on 09
February 2023.

Further, on 14 October 2023 the Board of Directors of the company approved the amendment to the Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) and Sharcholders” Agreement (SHA)
dated 0% February 2023 in the form of addendums to the SPA and SHA. Accordingly, the Company aquired 62% stake in STPIPL on 16 October 2023

On 05 Februacy 2024, the Company received Rs. 700.60 million from its Holding Company by way of subscription to equity share capital of the Company. Further, on 23
February 2024, the Company infused Rs, 700.00 million by way of subscdiption to equity shace capital of SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited (formerly EMF Ennovations
Private Limited) (SEMFT). Accordingly, the Company’s shasekolding in SEMFI has increased from 51% to 66.42%.

44, Disclosure required under Sec 186(4) of the Companies Act 2013:

Particulars Asat Asg at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Investments: Rs, million Rs. million
Investments at the beginning of the year 780.03 -
Investments made during the period-SEMFI 700.00 780.03
Adjustments during the year - SEMFT* (15.12) -
Investments made during the pedod-STPIPL 675.09 -
Adjustments during the year - STPIPL** (41.00) -
Investments at the end of the year 2,099.00 780.03

*Rs. 55.0 million were held back in fnancial year 2022-23 which wete to be paid to sellers as per terms of the Share Purchase Subscription Agreement. On §1 February 2024,
Rs. 39.88 million paid to sellers afier adjustment of Rs. 15.12 million on account of closing adjustments as per terms of Share Purchase Subscription Agreement, This has
resulted into reduction in investments in SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited by Rs. 15.12 million.

** The Share Puzchase Agreement executed between the Company and mincrity shareholders of STPIPL also includes a call option with SEL to buy femaining stake in
STPIPL from the minority sharcholders and a corresponding put option with the minority shareholders to ask the Company to purchase their shares duting specified periods
mentioned therein. Acordicgly, the Company has recognised call option asset amounting to Rs. 41.00 million with respect to such options in accordance with the requizements
of Ind AS 32, Financdial Instruments Presentation.

45. The Company has no transaction with compantes struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 ar section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

46. 9) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in aay
other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in
party identified by or on behaif of the Company {ultimate beneficiaries).

if) The Company has received funds from its Holding Company (funding party) with the undesstanding that the Company shall invest in equity share of ultimate beneficiary
identified by the Holding Company, as detailed below :

{Rs, million)
Date of int of Date of Amount
. ate o recelpt_o Amount funded by funding| Name of ultimate | investmeant into invested in
Name of the funding party funds from funding . i . . :
2 party (in Rs millions) beneficiary ultimate ultimate
party beneficiary beneficiary
10 October 2023 SPR Takahata Precision) ¢ (5. 1.0, 2023
675.09 India Private Limited 675.09
Shriram Pistens & Rings Limited - N -
. {01 Debruary 2024 (1512)
05 Feb . 2024 SPR EMF Innovations
ebruary Private Limited 01 Masrch 2024
700.00 T00.00

With regard to the above investments made during the year ended 31 March 2024 the Company has complicd with the relevant provisions of applicable laws.

47. The Company deesn't have any contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.




SPR Engenious Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2024

48. The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (such s, search o survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961.

49. No proceedings have been initiated or ace pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prehibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)
and rules made thereunder.

50. There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be tegistered with ROC beyond the statutery period.

51. The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual Currency during the financial year.

52. The Company has commenced manufacturing operations on 27 March 2024, at its facility located 2t Pithempuz, Madhya Pradesh.
53. The Company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financizl institution or government or any government avthority

54. The company has complied with the number of layers as prescribed under clause {87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on numbes of Layers) Rules,
2017,

55. Figures of previous year have been regrouped/ seclassified, wherever necessary, to correspond with the figures of the current period.

56.The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 13 May 2024.

(This spce has been intentionally left blank)
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Notes to the Snancial statements for the period ended 31 March 2024

57. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has prescribed a new requitement for companies under the proviso to Rule 5{1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, inserted
by the Companies {Accounts) Amendment Rules 2021 requiring companies, which uses accounting software for maintaining its books of account, , shall only use such accounting
software which has a feature of recording audit trail of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the books of account along with the date when such
change were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled. The new requirement is applicable with effect from the financial year beginning on 1 Apdl 2023,

During the current year, the audit trail (edit logs) fearure for any direct changes made at the database level was not enabled for the accounting software SAP ECC used for

muintenance of books of account. However, the audit trail {edit log) at the application level for the accounting software were operating for alt selevant transactions recorded in the
software.

In tecms of our report attached

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants
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